Implementation of a Best Practice Advisory to Reduce Postoperative Delirium Rates in Elderly Surgical Patients

Megan Danneker, BSN, RN, CCRN

A Project Report Submitted to the Faculty of The School of Nursing at The University of North Carolina at Greensboro in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Doctorate in Nursing Practice

Greensboro

2024

Approved by:

Ms. Megan Danneker, BSN, RN, CCRN

Project Team Leader

Dr. Terry Wicks, DNP, CRNA

Project Team Co-Leader

Dr. Wanda Williams, PhD, MSN, RN, WHNP-BC, CNE DNP Program Director

Table of Contents

Abstract
Background and Significance
Search Strategy4
Purpose5
Review of Current Evidence
Conceptual Framework/Theoretical Model7
Methods
Design10
Translational Framework10
Population11
Setting12
Project Implementation
Data Analysis13
Results
Discussion14
Conclusion15
References17
Appendices

Abstract

There is a growing proportion of elderly patients (sixty-five years and older) in the United States using a disproportionate amount of healthcare resources. The elderly population is at the highest risk for postoperative delirium which can be associated with numerous unfavorable outcomes for patients, families, and our healthcare system. There are many medications given during anesthesia care that can increase the likelihood of patients experiencing post operative delirium. This project aimed to create a tool to help remind anesthesia providers of these medications and their impact. With the implementation of the tool and education, there was a significant reduction in the amount of corticosteroid administered. This result indicates that a best practice advisory can be helpful for anesthesia providers to tailor their care to meet each patient's needs.

Background and Significance

In the U.S., a growing proportion of elderly patients use a disproportionate amount of healthcare resources. Generally, this population needs more healthcare resources in the form of medications, hospital admissions, and surgical interventions. The elderly population is at the highest risk for postoperative delirium, with prevalence up to 50% (Donovan, 2020). Delirium is described by Sultan as an acute, confused state, in which a patient has reduced awareness or clarity of their surroundings, an alteration in attention, disorganized thinking, disrupted psychomotor activity and abnormal sleep and wakefulness cycles (Sultan, 2010). As anesthesia providers, it is imperative we use anesthetic techniques and medications that will optimize patients' recovery from anesthesia while avoiding medications that could contribute to delirium.

Postoperative delirium is associated with prolonged recovery, longer hospital admissions, worse outcomes and reduced functional recovery with cognitive decline (Donovan, 2020). These factors make postoperative delirium costly and lead to poor outcomes for already fragile patients. The American Geriatric Society (AGS) Beers Criteria identifies medications that should be avoided in elderly (ages 65 and older) patients. Anesthesia providers should use the criteria to ensure they are tailoring practices to meet this population's needs. This includes avoiding administering potentially harmful medication to elderly patients. The AGS Beers Criteria is a simple reference tool for providers to verify they are administering appropriate medications (Fixen, 2019).

Implementing a best practice advisory (BPA) serves as a reminder in the electronic health record. This is helpful to anesthesia providers who administer anesthesia to numerous elderly patients daily. An automatically populating best practice advisory can improve patient outcomes by presenting important information once a particular patient population has been identified (Alagiakrishnan et al., 2019). The advisory would populate in the electronic medical record, highlighting the "Best Practice" tab in all patient charts that are age sixty-five and older. The advisory would encourage the provider to use best practices regarding postoperative delirium. This advisory would also be paired with education about best practices before implementation in the electronic medical record.

Providing education and integrating a best practice advisory into the electronic medical should encourage providers to avoid medications outlined by the AGS Beers Criteria. In turn, this should reduce postoperative delirium in elderly patients and improve outcomes.

Search Strategy

A literature search of the database PubMed was conducted using the following search terms and Boolean operators; "postoperative" "delirium" "elderly". This search matched thirtyeight articles. The ten articles most relevant to the PICOT question were selected from this

search. A second search of the "CINAHL" database using the Boolean operators "delirium" "medications" and "perioperative" generated an five additional articles. Inclusion criteria included studies of surgical patients undergoing general anesthesia, ages sixty-five and older. Exclusion criteria included patients not receiving general anesthesia and those under sixty-five years old.

Purpose

In the U.S. there is a growing elderly population utilizing a disproportionate volume of healthcare resources (Donovan, 2019). This cohort is prescribed more medications, require more frequent hospital admissions, and has more frequent surgical interventions. Elderly patients are at the highest risk for postoperative delirium, with prevalence up to 50% (Donovan, 2020).

Delirium is described as an acute confused state, in which a patient has reduced awareness or clarity of their surroundings, alteration in their attention, disorganized thinking, disrupted psychomotor activity, and abnormal sleep and wakefulness cycles (Sultan, 2010). Anesthesia providers should be encouraged to use anesthetic techniques and medications to optimize patients' recovery from anesthesia and avoid medications that contribute to delirium.

Postoperative delirium is associated with prolonged recovery times, extended hospital stays, increased healthcare costs, worse outcomes, reduced functional recovery, and cognitive decline (Donovan, 2020). Implementation of specific interventions could reduce and/or prevent delirium, leading to lower costs and improved patient outcomes.

The American Geriatric Society (AGS) developed the Beers Criteria, which includes guidelines for medications to avoid in elderly patients. Anesthesia providers should apply the criteria to ensure they tailor practices to limit the administration of potentially harmful medications. The AGS Beers Criteria is a reference tool for providers to verify they are administering appropriate medications (Fixen, 2019).

Implementing a "Best Practice" advisory in the electronic health record could capture the attention of providers who administer anesthesia daily to elderly patients. An automatically populating "Best Practice" advisory could improve patient safety, serving as a reminder of best practices in a vulnerable population (Alagiakrishnan et al., 2019). Integrating this alert into the electronic medical record would notify providers their patient is at risk for postoperative delirium. This would encourage avoidance of the drug classes outlined by the AGS Beers Criteria and reduce postoperative delirium in elderly patients.

Review of Current Evidence

Many medications anesthesia providers commonly administer are linked to postoperative delirium in elderly patients. There is strong evidence to support reducing administration of these medications in delirium-prone patients. These medications are identified by The American Geriatric Society as potentially inappropriate medications for elderly patients (Fixen, 2019). Patients having two or more of the following criteria should be considered at high risk for developing postoperative delirium: age greater than sixty-five years, chronic cognitive decline or dementia, poor vision or hearing, severe illness, or the presence of infection (Burfeind, 2021). It is important to avoid the use of anticholinergics, H2 blockers, benzodiazepines, opioids, and antipsychotics when caring for these patients (Elkassabany, 2009).

Delirium prolongs hospital stays, is linked to worse outcomes, and increases mortality (Elkassabany, 2009). Delirium causes problems in the acute postoperative period and causes detrimental long-term effects. Patients may have increased hospital length of stay and may need

a higher level of care postoperatively. Medications administered intraoperatively are an avoidable cause of delirium. Anesthesia providers should limit the administration of medications linked to causing delirium and choose medications shown to reduce the occurrence of delirium (Elkassabany, 2009; Huyan, 2019).

In contrast, Dexmedetomidine (Precedex) has been found to reduce the risk of postoperative delirium (Huyan, 2019). Precedex improves sleep quality in the postoperative period, linking it to reducing delirium. Precedex has analgesic properties, and the reduction of pain decreases the incidence of delirium (Huyan, 2019).

Delirium prevention requires multidisciplinary collaboration. The role anesthesia providers play is fundamental. Focus on medication administration intraoperatively could make a significant improvement in postoperative outcomes.

Published evidence supports using a computerized clinical alert in the electronic health record to reduce inappropriate medication administration to elderly patients (Adeola, 2018). Delirium can be prevented by reducing the administration of inappropriate medications (Donovan, 2020). Implementing an advisory would encourage providers to be more aware of the harm the medications can cause. Along with education, the advisory would serve as a reminder and could contribute to reducing postoperative delirium in the elderly.

Conceptual Framework/Theoretical Model

The Johns Hopkins Practice Model was used to guide the project. The model is based on improving healthcare practice. The first step is proposing a question or issue, using evidence to improve practice, and examining if outcomes are improved after implementation (Dang & Dearholt, 2018). Following this model, the project aimed to improve healthcare practice by focusing on postoperative delirium.

The first step in the model is inquiry, which was done by inquiring about postoperative delirium's impact on patients, families, and our healthcare system. A literature review was performed to gain current information. This led to researching best practices and finding evidence. Evidence was found for reducing the use of medications listed in the Beers Criteria. An attempt to improve practice was made by implementing a best practice advisory.

The project aimed for anesthesia providers to reduce perioperative administration of medications meeting the Beers Criteria. A best practice advisory was embedded in the electronic medical record and was intended to reduce postoperative delirium in elderly patients undergoing general anesthesia. A chart review was done before and after implementation to examine effectiveness. Based on reflection, the final step of the Johns Hopkins Model occurred after data collection. Reflection led to further inquiry about the project's limitations and what could be done to further the success of this or future projects.

Methods

The project conducted was quantitative and included data from chart review performed before and after providing education and implementing a best practice advisory (BPA) in the electronic medical record, EPIC. The chief CRNA granted site approval at the selected hospital. This project was deemed exempt from both the university and site IRB. The selected hospital had a Clinical Decision Support Committee, and a request was submitted for permission to implement a BPA in EPIC. The Committee agreed to include a passive best practice alert in

EPIC electronic. The original alert can be seen in *Figure 1*; a screenshot of the implemented final alert is pictured in *Figure 2*.

The starting framework for the alert was created and included in a project implemented by SRNAs at the University of Pennsylvania. See *Figure 1* (Warner et al., 2019). The alert was then tailored to the criteria approved by the Clinical Decisions Committee at the selected hospital.

The BPA was created to be active in charts of surgical patients aged sixty-five years and older, as this population is considered "high risk" for developing postoperative delirium. The intention behind the advisory was to encourage providers to avoid administration or reduce dosage of benzodiazepines, anticholinergics, H2-receptor antagonists, corticosteroids, and antipsychotics. It was also intended to promote the use of regional anesthesia, decrease opioids with other multimodal medications, such dexmedetomidine and acetaminophen, and encourage bispectral index (BIS) use.

Before the BPA went live in EPIC, education was provided in handout form to notify CRNAs about the new alert. To engage CRNAs to read the education via the handouts, a basket of snacks with the handouts was provided in the breakroom frequented by CRNAs throughout the day. In addition, the educational materials were emailed to each CRNA. The education was available for one week before the advisory was activated. An electronic medical record review was conducted before and after implantation. Data analysis was performed to determine if the alert implementation changed medication administration by CRNAs.

The chief CRNA at the selected hospital granted permission for the project's implementation. The chief provided the contact person for the Clinical Decision Support

Committee, which met periodically to discuss various clinical topics. At this meeting, the idea for the project was discussed with the team. Background and significance were discussed as well as the implementation of a Best Practice alert/advisory. The team ultimately agreed that this project was significant and could improve patient care. The Committee declined to implement an active "pop-up" type of alert, for fear of alert fatigue but agreed a passive, "Best Practice Advisory" would be acceptable.

This project required minimal funding. The anticipated cost was a snack basket to encourage provider engagement, and for paper/printing of educational handouts. The project's cost was small and could be financed by the PI. No other financial support was needed.

Design

Anesthesia providers were informed of the best practice advisory via email one week before implementation. Secondly, a brief educational pamphlet and snack basket were provided in the breakroom, with flyers posted outside the anesthesia office, locker room, and near computer workstations.

The design for the best practice alert was modeled after an alert previously implemented by DNP students in Pennsylvania (See *Figure 1*) (Warner et al., 2019). The advisory's purpose was to make the anesthesia provider aware of the patient's risk of postoperative delirium, remind them of medications to avoid, and offer recommendations to facilitate better outcomes.

Translational Framework

The translational framework used to guide this project was Lewin's Change Model. This model is commonly implemented for projects requiring clinical practice change to take place. The model is based on unfreezing, change, and refreezing (Hussain et al., 2018). This project

sought to follow the model in the following ways: unfreezing was performed using impactful education about the need for change and why the project was necessary. The change would then be more likely to happen following this education and to see the passive alert in patient charts. Once the practice changes happen, providers will see improved outcomes, which will enforce refreezing, meaning that the providers will have adopted and continued to use a new way of practicing.

Population

Inclusion criteria for sampled patients were those aged sixty-five or older, undergoing general anesthesia at the selected hospital. Chart review was conducted by randomly selecting 100 patient charts that met the inclusion criteria before the BPA was implemented and sampling another 100 patient charts meeting the same inclusion criteria after the BPA was in effect. Exclusion criteria included patients not undergoing general anesthesia or general anesthesia administered to patients younger than age sixty-five.

Setting

The hospital where this project was implemented was in southeast North Carolina. It has 208 acute care beds. The surgery department has ten operating rooms, two minor procedure rooms, and cystoscopy and endoscopy suites. In 2021, this hospital performed 2,952 inpatient surgeries and 6,490 outpatient surgeries. This site was selected because of the receptivity of the chief CRNA and staff to promoting education and best practice interventions. The small size of this hospital made it feasible to meet with information support and create a BPA in EPIC in a timely manner. Additionally, the hospital is associated with other hospitals in the area, including

a large, level 1 trauma hospital. The intent was to implement this project on a larger scale in the future by including other associated hospitals.

Project Implementation

Implementation was contingent on permission from the Clinical Decision Support Committee. In April 2023, a meeting was conducted with the committee. At the meeting, information about the project was presented and discussed. The committee members agreed the intervention was valuable and could be implemented. It was decided that a passive best practice advisory be utilized. This would flag charts, highlighting that there was a "Best Practice Advisory" for the patient. The user would need to click the highlighted tab to view the advisory. The advisory appeared as in figure 2. (See figure 2). An informational email was sent out to all CRNAs at the facility to notify them of the coming advisory. Also, written information was distributed in the form of a physical flyer. The flyers were placed in the anesthesia breakroom, alongside a basket of snacks, to encourage providers to take notice of the information. Additional flyers were posted near workstations and in the locker room.

After the information was available for an entire week, the advisory went live in EPIC. Three weeks after advisory implementation, a chart review was conducted. Using fifty patient charts, medication administrations that met the Beers Criteria were quantified, pre- and postimplementation of the BPA. The medications quantified were narrowed to the most commonly administered medications meeting Beers Criteria and dexmedetomidine, for comparison, which was recommended to use reduce the incidence of delirium.

Data Analysis

Data was collected from fifty patients that met inclusion criteria pre-intervention and fifty patients post-intervention. Data was randomly collected from the operating room schedule,

selecting patients greater than and equal to sixty-five years old from three weeks before the best practice advisory went live. Similarly, another fifty patients were selected over three-weeks after the best practice advisory was available in the electronic medical record.

The number of administrations of midazolam, diphenhydramine, dexamethasone and dexmedetomidine were tallied. A statistician was consulted on how to analyze this data best. A Chi-square test was done to determine if the results were statistically significant.

Results

Four of the medications listed explicitly in the best practice advisory were examined as data. Three of the medications are from the Beers criteria, midazolam, diphenhydramine, and dexamethasone and the fourth, dexmedetomidine, was listed as an encouraged medication linked to delirium reduction.

While there was a reduction in the number of administrations of midazolam, it was not statistically significant. There was no difference in the administration of diphenhydramine. There was a significant reduction in dexamethasone. The amount of dexmedetomidine was included in the results to see if there was an increase in administration as the alert recommended using this medication as an adjunct to reduce opioids. There was a slight decrease in the number of times dexmedetomidine was administered.

Table	1.

	Preintervention	Postintervention	P-value
	administrations (out	administrations (out	
	of 50)	of 50)	
Midazolam	26	23	0.616
Diphenhydramine	4	4	1
Dexamethasone	45	14	0.004
Dexmedetomidine	10	9	0.871

Discussion

The project's purpose was to implement a BPA and determine if it reduced the number of administrations of medications listed (midazolam, diphenhydramine, dexamethasone) known to contribute to postoperative delirium. Also, for comparison, the number of administrations of dexmedetomidine was included, which was suggested to be beneficial, to see if there was an increase in administration.

The major finding was that there was one medication that had a statistically significant reduction in administration. The medication was dexamethasone, a corticosteroid commonly given to prevent postoperative nausea and vomiting and reduce swelling.

This finding is important because it supports that a passive, best-practice advisory did lead to a practice change. This finding could be directly related to education about this commonly given drug and the reinforcement of reminders via the best practice advisory. In the clinical setting, providers may give this medication to most patients to prevent nausea. However, they may not have been aware of the risk of increasing delirium rates until viewing the education and best practice advisory.

Limitations

This project has some limitations. Because the alert was passive, there was nothing the provider had to click on to acknowledge reading the alert. It is unknown if the advisory was selected to view when the provider accessed the chart. The advisory was a chart tab, highlighted if the patient met the criteria. The concern from the approval committee was that if a "pop-up" type of alert was implemented, it could contribute to alert fatigue. Therefore, the limitation was having an advisory that needed to be clicked on to view, rather than an active alert that the provider would have to see when it displayed itself upon entering the chart.

Findings of this project include results from project collaborator Danielle Lee. Lee used the same education and intervention but focused her research on other variables. She examined hospital stay length and if patients developed delirium, confusion, or disorientation in the postoperative period (Lee, 2023). Her findings were that slightly fewer patients developed delirium postoperatively, but not enough to be statistically significant. This was also true for hospital length of stay (Lee, 2023).

A possible explanation as to why there was not a reduction in midazolam and diphenhydramine could be that providers already felt that they were making the most clinically sound decisions in their medication administration and did not feel the benefit outweighed the risk. Another possible explanation is that providers do not typically administer midazolam or diphenhydramine to elderly patients, so the only significant change was seen in the administration of dexamethasone. Based on discussion with various CRNAs in clinical practice, providers may be wary of increasing the administration of Precedex for fear that elderly patients will be too obtunded in the intraoperative phase to move to the postoperative phase. Suggestions for further research include the following. Further research could consist of exploring patient perspectives about their postoperative period and recovery. Additional research could also be performed by comparing less commonly administered medications to learn if reduction occurred. Because the medicines examined are given routinely, the repetition of use could have been a barrier to change.

Conclusion

In conclusion, reducing the administration of medications known to contribute to postoperative delirium should be encouraged whenever clinically reasonable. Implementation of multimodal pain medications, such as acetaminophen and dexmedetomidine, should continue to be encouraged. The implementation of a best practice advisory led to the reduction of a commonly administered corticosteroid. With further research and greater understanding of postoperative delirium, one day it can be eliminated as a risk for all patients. In current practice, evidence should continue to drive best practices. Utilization of best practice advisories can help improve patient outcomes for postoperative delirium and much more.

References

- Abdeen, A., Cooper, Z., Earp, B., Fond, T. G., Gou, R. Y., Hshieh, T. T., Inouye, S. K., Jones, R. N., Lange, J., Leslie, D. L., Marcantonio, E. R., Schmitt, E. M., & Travison, T. G. (2021).
 One-year Medicare costs associated with delirium in older patients undergoing major elective surgery. *JAMA Surgery*. *156*(5), 430-442. doi:10.1001/jamasurg.2020.7260
- Adeola M, Azad R, Kassie GM, Shirkey B, Taffet G, Liebl M, Agarwal K. (2018).
 Multicomponent interventions reduce high-risk medications for delirium in hospitalized older adults. *Journal of American Geriatric Society*. 66(8):1638-1645. Doi: 10.1111/jgs.15438. E-pub 2018 Jul 23. PMID: 30035315.
- Alagiakrishnan, K., Ballermann, M., Rolfson, D., Mohindra, K., Sadowski, C. A., Ausford, A., Romney, J., & Hayward, R. S. (2019). Utilization of computerized clinical decision support for potentially inappropriate medications. *Clinical Interventions in Aging*, 14, 753-762. <u>https://doi.org/10.2147/CIA.S192927</u>
- American Geriatrics Society Beers Criteria. Update Expert Panel. American Geriatrics Society 2023 updated AGS Beers Criteria for potentially inappropriate medication use in older adults. *Journal of the American Geriatrics Society*. 2023;71(7):2052-2081. doi:10.1111/jgs.18372
- Burfeind, K. G., Tirado Navales, A., A., Brandon, M. T., & Schenning, K. (2021). Prevention of postoperative delirium through the avoidance of potentially inappropriate medications in a geriatric surgical patient. *BMJ Case Reports*, 14(4) https://doi.org/10.1136/bcr-2020-240403

- Colburn, J.L., Mohanty, S. and Burton, J.R. (2017), Surgical guidelines for perioperative management of older adults: what geriatricians need to know. *Journal of American Geriatric Society, 65:* 1339-1346. <u>https://doi-org.libproxy.uncg.edu/10.1111/jgs.14877</u>
- Dang, D. & Dearholt, S. L. (2018). Johns Hopkins Nursing Evidence-Based Practice Third Edition: Model and Guidelines: Vol. Third edition. Sigma Theta Tau International.
- Donovan, A., Braehler, M., Robinowitz, D., Lazar, A., Finlayson, E., Rogers, S., Douglas, V. & Whitlock, E. (2020). An implementation-effectiveness study of a perioperative delirium prevention initiative for older adults. *Anesthesia & Analgesia, 131* (6), 1911-1922. Doi: 10.1213/ANE.00000000005223.
- Elkassabany, N., M.D., Muravchick, Stanley, M.D., PhD., & Fleisher, L. A., M.D. (2009). Thinking clearly about postoperative delirium and perioperative medications: how concerned should we be? *Canadian Journal of Anesthesia*, 56(11), 785-788. https://doi.org/10.1007/s12630-009-9171-1
- Fixen D. R., (2019). 2019 AGS Beers Criteria for older adults. *Pharmacy Today*. <u>https://www.pharmacytoday.org/article/S1042-0991(19)31235-6/pdf</u>
- Hale L.S., Griffin A.E., Cartwright O.M., Moulin J., Alford S.J., & Fleming R.M. (2008).
 Potentially inappropriate medication use in hospitalized older adults: a DUE using the full
 Beers criteria. *Formulary*, 43(9), 326–339.
- Hunter, C. L., Ni Chroinin, D., McEvoy, L., & Chuan, A. (2021). Delirium reduction by analgesia management in hip fracture surgery (DRAM-HF): Exploration of perceived facilitators and barriers. *Australasian Journal on Ageing*, 40(4), e332–e340. <u>https://doiorg.libproxy.uncg.edu/10.1111/ajag.12991</u>

- Huyan T., Hu X., Peng H., Zhu Z., Li Q., Zhang W. (2019). Perioperative Dexmedetomidine reduces delirium in elderly patients after lung cancer surgery. *Psychiatry Danub*. Mar;31(1):95-101. Doi: 10.24869/psyd.2019.95. PMID: 30948695.
- Janssen T.L., Alberts A.R., Hooft L., Mattace-Raso F., Mosk C.A., van der Laan L. (2019).
 Prevention of postoperative delirium in elderly patients planned for elective surgery: systematic review and meta-analysis. *Clinical Interventions in Aging*. Jun 19;14:1095-1117. Doi: 10.2147/CIA.S201323. PMID: 31354253; PMCID: PMC6590846.
- Mangnall LT, Gallagher R, & Stein-Parbury J. (2011). Postoperative delirium after colorectal surgery in older patients. *American Journal of Critical Care*, 20(1), 45–55. <u>https://doiorg.libproxy.uncg.edu/10.4037/ajcc2010902</u>
- Parikh S. & Chung F. 1995. Medical Intelligence Article. Anesthesia & Analgesia. Vol 80 (6), P 1223-1232
- Ramroop R, Hariharan S, Chen D. Emergence delirium following sevoflurane anesthesia in adults: prospective observational study. Braz J. Anesthesiology. 2019 May-Jun;69(3):233-241. doi: 10.1016/j.bjan.2018.12.003. E-pub 2019 May 7. PMID: 31076155; PMCID: PMC9391875.
- Sultan, S.S. (2010). Assessment of role of perioperative melatonin in prevention and treatment of postoperative delirium after hip arthroplasty under spinal anesthesia in the elderly. *Saudi Journal of Anaesthesia.* 4(3), 169-173. <u>https://doi-org.libproxy.uncg.edu/10.4103/1658-</u> 354X.71132
- Hussain, S., Lei,S., Akram, T., Haider, M., Hussain, SH., Ali, M., Kurt Lewin's change model: A critical review of the role of leadership and employee involvement in organizational

change, *Journal of Innovation & Knowledge*, 3(3), (2018), 123-127. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jik.2016.07.002.

Warner, V, Fontanilla, L, Prendergast, C. "An electronic alert to reduce postoperative delirium in the older adult" (2019). Doctor of Nursing Practice (DNP) Projects. 31. https://repository.upenn.edu/dnp_projects/31

Appendices

		BestPractice Advisory - \	uniterson, cents	
) Delirium Prev	ention in Ol	der Patients		
	Cor	nsider avoiding/reducing administra Benzodiazz Midazol Anticholin Scopolamine, Diph H2-Receptor Ar Cimetidine, Famotidine, N Corticoste Antipsych Chlorprom Meperid	epines am ergics enhydramine htagonists lizatidine, Ranitidine roids ootics azine	8
*Base	ed on the "2	2019 AGS Beers Criteria for Potentiall		older Adults."
*Base	ed on the "2	2019 AGS Beers Criteria for Potentiall		0lder Adults."
*Base Acknowledg				older Adults."

Figure 1. This is an example of a similar BPA previously implemented by SRNAs in

Pennsylvania.

Hyperspace – WCH ANESTHE	SIA - Non-Production	– DANIELLE L.				
Epic - AD Outside Records	Patient Station 🚦 Patient	Lists 🎆 Snapboard				Hospital C
Code: History/Full per policy (Has Adv. Dir.) Benergy (Has Adv. Dir.) Level of Care: Beamedy (monitored Priblem Coses Inpatient PCP: PROVIDER NOT IN STREET PCP: PROVIDER NOT IN STREET Mattening Attention; Street Street Street Street Street Street Street Street Street Street Street Street Cost Prible Street Street Cost Prible Street Street Cost Prible Street	Construction C	·	S Manage Orders Intraprocedure Provide feedback for this alert, thumbs upi Avoid/Reduce: Benzodiazepijes: Midazolam Provide Readure: Corticosteroids Corticosteroids Corticosteroids Corticosteroids Mependine	henhydramine	Postprocedure	MAR
Allergies: Crab, Erythomyclin, Horse Dander Height:	History Pre Evaluation Problem List Hiddle Anes Review STOP-Bang/Pt QNs Orcers Orcers Orcers Cosign Orders Antsthetsia Stratt Anesthesia Stratt	Procedure Information State and the approximation of the approximation o		Date/Time: 0	5/08/23 2045	

Figure 2. An example of the Best Practice Advisory implemented in the electronic medical record at the selected site.

POSTOPERATIVE DELIRIUM BEST PRACTICE ADVISORY

Why are we concerned about delirium?

Release in September 2023

- The World Health Organization predicts that by the year 2030, there will be 1 in 6 people over the age of 60, which is an increase from 1 billion in 2020 to 1.4 billion.
- Postoperative delirium is one of the most common anesthesia complications in those over 60, and 40% of reported cases could have been prevented!
- Postoperative delirium is associated with prolonged recovery time, longer hospital admissions, worse outcomes, reduced functional recovery with cognitive decline, and increased hospital cost.
- Research has determined that the economic burden of delirium is comparable to diseases such as diabetes and cardiovascular disease.

Goal: Reduce the frequency of postoperative delirium related to general anesthesia administration in patients over the age of 65 by providing an educational best practice advisory alert within the EMR for anesthesia providers.

Epice And resolve how Exceed Status	Hyperspace – WCH ANESTHES	IA - Non-Production -	DANIELLE L.							
Image: Content of Cont		Patient Station . 🖨 Patient	Lists 🔣 Snepboerd							Linevital C
Code flatter of a large state. Code flatter of a large state. Code flatter of a large state. Code flatter of a large state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Code flatter of a large state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Code flatter of a large state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Code flatter of a large state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Code flatter of a large state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Code flatter of a large state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Code flatter of a large state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Code flatter of a large state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Conscience state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Conscience state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Conscience state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Conscience state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Conscience state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Conscience state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Conscience state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Conscience state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Conscience state. Reduce Rost-op Delirium in this 65+ patient Conscience state.	9000	-	U	Acsults Review	Notes	🛞 Manage Orders	intraprocedure	Preprocedure	Postprocedure	
Level of Cave Telematry (monostrol Patients) Proc Acadmais (main monostrol Patients) Processor Patient Processor Pati	Code: History/Full per policy	BestPractice Procedure Info	C BestPractice Ad			Provide feedback for	r this alert, thumbs uply	śawn		
Crab Explorancych, Norze Weight: – Weight: – Weight: – Weight: – Sthi 123 stym* Poccedure Information Acker Statew Acker Statew Courtine 68,0503 2048 Acker Statew Acker Statew Courtine 68,0503 2048 Acker Statew Acker Statew Courtine 68,0503 2048 Acker Statew Acker Statew Acker Statew State Instate Statew Acker Statew Acker Statew State Instate Statew Acker Statew Acker Statew State Instate Statew Acker Statew Acker Statew Filter Statewidter Statew Acker Statew Acker Statew Filter Statewidter S	(Has Arb. Diz.) Level of Care Telemetry/monitored Patient Class: Inpatient PCP: PRCVIDER NOT IN SYSTEM Justin Ryan Kauk, MD Attending Admitted: 5/7/2023 (1 d), No documented GMLOS	Prev Anasthaala Sedation Nerrator Proceduro Plan Care Dreywhere Vitals Autrones / Mess Allargias Home Medications Dosing Weight	Consider utilizing • Regional Anes • BIS Monitoring • Reduction of C	g: thetic Techniques I Dpioids with Multimoda	ils.	Benzodlazepir Anticholinergi H2-Receptor A Ranitdine Corticosteroid Antipsychotic Chlorpromazine	les: Scopolamine, Diph Antagonists: Cimetidin Is S		idine,	
REVISION (Left: Hip) Avenues Start More information C	Crab, Erythromycin, Horse Dander Height: — Weight: — Bhil: 133 kg/m ² ASA ⊕ Watch mads found STOP-Bang Score: 2 PROCEDURE LEFT HIP ARTIROPLASTY TOTAL	Pre Evaluation Problem List Hoddle Ancs Review STOP-Bang/Pt QNs Greens Review Orders Orders	Color Marchine Environment and Marchine Environment Marchine and Marchine Marchine and Marchine Environment and Marchine Environment and Marchine Environment and Marchine					Date/Time	08,08/28 2046	

The highlighted row will indicate if your patient is at higher risk for postoperative delirium. Under the advisory, recommendations for best practice will appear.



DNP Project for Megan Danneker, SRNA and Danielle Lee, SRNA If questions, feel free to email us! medanneker@uncg.edu dolee@uncg.edu